
 

 

BOROUGH OF MANASQUAN AGENDA  

August 14, 2023 7:00 PM 

This Regular Meeting of the Mayor and Council of the Borough of Manasquan is called pursuant 

to the provisions of the Open Public Meetings Law.  Adequate notice has been provided by 

transmitting the Resolution of Annual Meetings to the Asbury Park Press and the Coast Star, by 

posting it in the Borough Hall on a bulletin board reserved for such announcements, and by posting 

it on the official website of the borough.  This agenda is complete to the extent known and formal 

action will be taken. 

As a courtesy to the public this meeting may be attended via zoom.  If for any reason the zoom 

portion of this meeting fails or is disconnected the in-person meeting will continue and action 

can/will be taken.  After signing in you will be put into a meeting room and the Municipal Clerk 

will allow you access just before the meeting time.  

https://us06web.zoom.us/j/8830046931 or 1-646-876-9923 

ID# 883 004 6931 

Moment of Silent Prayer 

Pledge of Allegiance 

Roll Call 

Audience Participation - Limited to Agenda Items Only (time limit of 5 minutes) 

Approval of Minutes 

1. Regular Meeting Minutes - July 10, 2023 

2. Regular Meeting Minutes - July 24, 2023 

 

Other Items 

1. Engineer's Monthly Report 

 

Consent Agenda: These items will be enacted by one motion. If detailed deliberation is desired 

on any item, Council may remove that item from the consent agenda and consider it separately. 

1. 215-2023 Refund Planning Board Escrow - Various 

2. 216-2023 Appointing Additional Beach Staff 

3. 217-2023 Formally Designating 27 Osborn Avenue as Manasquan Community 

Senior Center 

4. 218-2023 Authorizing Return of Street Opening Security - 321 Cedar Avenue 

5. 219-2023 Honoring Walter (Wally) Wall by Naming the Inlet Gazebo "Wally Wally 

Inlet Gazebo" 

6. 220-2023 Return of Security Deposit - Coast Rehabilitation Physical Therapy 

7. 221-2023 Appoint Summer Recreation Camp Staff - Pollock 

8. 222-2023 Authorizing Execution of Commodity Resale Agreement - County of 

Monmouth 

9. 223-2023 Change Order & Final - Curtis Park Improvements 

10. 224-2023 Return Dumpster Security - 324 Perrine Blvd. 

11. 225-2023 Awarding First Avenue Improvements Phase II Contract - Black Rock 

Enterprises 

12. 226-2023 Declining MC Municipal Open Space Grant for Curtis Park Improvement 

Project Phase III 

13. 227-2023 Authorizing Scope of Work First Avenue Improvements Phase II Project - 

Colliers Engineering 

14. 228-2023 Authorizing Execution of CDBG Agreement - Euclid Avenue Area 

Improvements Phase II 

15. 229-2023 Adopting Excessive Force Policy 

16. 230-2023 Authorizing Tax Exempt Status for Disabled Veteran - Mihok 

17. 231-2023 Authorizing Execution of Certification Prohibiting Use of Excessive Force 

and Use of Federal Funds for Lobbying 

18. 232-2023 Appreciation to Monmouth County for Broad Street Drainage 

Improvements 

19. 233-2023 Payment of Bills 

https://www.google.com/url?q=https://us06web.zoom.us/j/8830046931&sa=D&source=calendar&ust=1647711394879326&usg=AOvVaw1IdxPy6I4Z1ktlgixDjBUx


 

 

 

Ordinances - Second Reading 

1. 2408-23 AMEND CHAPTER 7 (TRAFFIC) SECTION 7-31.1b (REGULATIONS 

FOR THE MOVEMENT AND THE PARKING OF TRAFFIC ON MUNICIPAL 

PROPERTY AND BOARD OF EDUCATION PROPERTY) AND AMENDING 

SECTION 7-25.3 (HANDICAPPED PARKING IN MUNICIPAL PARKING LOTS 

AND BOARD OF EDUCATION PROPERTY)  

 

Committee Reports 

Audience Participation On Any Subject (comments limited to 5 minutes) 

Adjournment 















 

 

  
 BOROUGH OF MANASQUAN  

RESOLUTION 
215-2023 

  
 

BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the Borough of Manasquan, County of 

Monmouth, State of New Jersey that: 

 

WHEREAS, a refund of monies is due to the following: 

 

 

NAME:    ROBERT MCCARTHY 

   557 BRIELLE ROAD                       

                          MANASQUAN, NJ 08736 

                

       REASON FOR REFUND:  PLANNING BOARD ESCROW REFUND

                             APPLICATION #39-2021 

557 BRIELLE ROAD                                                         

BLOCK: 182.01   LOT: 30 

                                                         AMOUNT OF REFUND DUE: $1,383.50 

 

 

NAME: MJN LLC. 

    46 RIDGE AVENUE 

    MANASQUAN, NJ 08736 

 

 

   REASON FOR REFUND: PLANNING BOARD ESROW REFUND 

       APPLICATION #49-2021 

       25 BROAD STREET 

       BLOCK: 35     LOT: 19  

       AMOUNT OF REFUND DUE: $450.75 

 

 

 

  NAME: CAROLYN GRAPEL  

    19 ALLEN AVENUE  

    MANASQUAN, NJ 08736 

  

   REASON FOR REFUND: PLANNING BOARD ESCROW REFUND 

                                                                      APPLICATION #28-2021 

               19 ALLEN AVENUE 

               BLOCK: 21       LOT: 7.01 

               AMOUNT OF REFUND DUE: $741.75 

 

 

 

  NAME: RALCO BUILDERS 

    139 UNION AVENUE, UNIT A 

    MANASQUAN, NJ 08736 

 

   REASON FOR REFUND: PLANNING BOARD ESCROW REFUND 

              APPLICATION #50-2021 

              139 UNION AVENUE 

                          BLOCK: 118      LOT: 17.01 

               AMOUNT OF REFUND DUE:  $534.75   

 

                

                    NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Chief Financial 

Officer is hereby authorized and directed to draw a warrant in the said amount to the 

above listed refunds with said warrant to be charged against the General Ledger. 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 I, Barbara Ilaria, Municipal Clerk, Borough of Manasquan, County of 

Monmouth, State of New Jersey, do hereby certify that the foregoing resolution was 

duly adopted by the Borough Council at the August 14, 2023, meeting. 

 

        

________________________________ 

                                                                 BARBARA ILARIA, RMC, CMC  

                                                      Municipal Clerk 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

COUNCIL                                       

IN
T

R
O

D
U

C
E

D
 

S
E

C
O

N
D

E
D

 

A
Y

E
 

N
A

Y
 

A
B

S
T

A
IN

 

A
B

S
E

N
T

 

BRESNAHAN       

HOLLY       

LEE       

MANGAN       

OLIVERA       

TRIGGIANO       

       

ON CONSENT AGENDA   ____YES    ___NO 



BOROUGH OF MANASQUAN 

RESOLUTION  

216-2023 

 

 WHEREAS, the Borough of Manasquan is desirous of appointing additional 

Beach Staff for the 2023 Season; and 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Borough Council of the 

Borough of Manasquan, Monmouth County, New Jersey, on this 14th day of August 2023 

appoint the following Beach Staff to work during the 2023 Season: 

 

 

 

 

CERTIFICATION 

 

             I, Barbara Ilaria, Municipal Clerk of the Borough of Manasquan, Monmouth 

County, New Jersey, do hereby certify that the foregoing is a true copy of a Resolution 

duly adopted by the Borough Council at their regular meeting held on August 14, 2023. 

 

 

 _______________________________                                                     

BARBARA ILARIA, RMC, CMC                  

 Municipal Clerk 

 

 

 

 

  

                                                                     

Name Town Title 

Rate of Pay 
(Hourly/Sala
ry/Seasonal) 

Effective 
Date 

Hours 
(Part Time/ 
Seasonal) 

BEACH NON-
LIFEGUARD 

          

Hayden 
Schwartz Manalapan 

Badge 
Checker/booth $13/$14 

7/20/23 - 
9/30/23 Seasonal 

Christian 
Matthews Manasquan 

Badge 
Checker/booth $13/$14 

7/20/23 - 
9/30/23 Seasonal 

Adrianna 
Marshall Howell 

Badge 
Checker/booth $13/$14 

7/20/23 - 
9/30/23 Seasonal 

Sarah Sharpe Manasquan 
Badge 
Checker/booth $13/$14 

7/20/23 - 
9/30/23 Seasonal 

 

IN
T

R
O

D
U

C
E

D
 

S
E

C
O

N
D

E
D

 

A
Y

E
 

N
A

Y
 

A
B

S
T

A
IN

 

A
B

S
E

N
T

 

BRESNAHAN       

HOLLY       

LEE       

MANGAN       

OLIVERA       

TRIGGIANO       

ON CONSENT AGENDA   ____YES    ___NO 



 

 

  
 BOROUGH OF MANASQUAN  

RESOLUTION 
217-2023 

  

 

                

           WHEREAS, the Borough of Manasquan owns the property and building located 

at 27 Osborn Avenue (also known as 63 Atlantic Avenue and Lot 1.03 and Block 32); 

and  

           WHEREAS, it is the desire of the Governing Body to formally designate this 

property and building as a community center for use primarily by the Manasquan 

Seniors group and other local civic groups.  

 

           THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED AS FOLLOWS:  

The building at 27 Osborn Avenue shall be named The Manasquan Community Senior 

Center and is hereby designated for use by the Manasquan Seniors group and other local 

civic groups.   

Use of the building and scheduling of events shall be managed and administered by the 

Manasquan Borough Superintendent of Recreation or their designee.   

 

 

 

                                        CERTIFICATION 

 I, Barbara Ilaria, Municipal Clerk, Borough of Manasquan, County of 

Monmouth, State of New Jersey, do hereby certify that the foregoing resolution was 

duly adopted by the Borough Council at the August 14, 2023, meeting. 

 

        

________________________________ 

                                                                 BARBARA ILARIA, RMC, CMC  

                                                      Municipal Clerk 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

COUNCIL                                       

IN
T

R
O

D
U

C
E

D
 

S
E

C
O

N
D

E
D

 

A
Y

E
 

N
A

Y
 

A
B

S
T

A
IN

 

A
B

S
E

N
T

 

BRESNAHAN       

HOLLY       

LEE       

MANGAN       

OLIVERA       

TRIGGIANO       

       

ON CONSENT AGENDA   ____YES    ___NO 



 
 

 

BOROUGH OF MANASQUAN 

RESOLUTION 

         218-2023 

 

 
 

BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the Borough of Manasquan, County of 

Monmouth, State of New Jersey that: 

 

WHEREAS, a refund of monies are due to the following: 

        

         NAME:      RYAN KROZSER 

                            137 TRADESMAN LN 

                            SAINT JOHNS, FL 32259 

                            

                                                        AMOUNT OF REFUND DUE:    $2,500.00 

 

                            REASON FOR REFUND:   STREET OPENING  

 2nd RETURN 

                                                                          SO# 36/22  

 321 CEDAR AVENUE 

  

 

             NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Chief Financial Officer 

is hereby authorized and directed to draw a warrant in the said amount to the above 

listed refunds with said warrant to be charged against the General Ledger. 

 

  I, Barbara Ilaria, Municipal Clerk, Borough of Manasquan, County of 

Monmouth, State of New Jersey, do hereby certify that the foregoing resolution was 

duly adopted by the Borough Council at the August 14, 2023, meeting. 

 

     

                   ________________________________ 

                  BARBARA ILARIA, RMC, CMC 

                  Municipal Clerk 

 

 

 

 

 

IN
T

R
O

D
U

C
E

D
 

S
E

C
O

N
D

E
D

 

A
Y

E
 

N
A

Y
 

A
B

S
T

A
IN

 

A
B

S
E

N
T

 

BRESNAHAN       

HOLLY       

LEE       

MANGAN       

OLIVERA       

TRIGGIANO       

ON CONSENT AGENDA   ____YES    ___NO 



 

 

  
 BOROUGH OF MANASQUAN 

RESOLUTION 
219-2023 

  

 

                

           WHEREAS, Walter “Wally” Wall served as the Beach Manager for the Borough 

of Manasquan for 15 years from 2005 through 2020; and  

 

           WHEREAS, Mr. Wall’s tenure was marked by consistently and remarkably 

successful Manasquan Beach seasons; and   

 

           WHEREAS, during his tenure, Mr. Wall became a well-known and welcoming 

leader and presence for countless beachgoers, lifeguards, beach staff, etc.; and  

 

           WHEREAS, it is the desire of the Manasquan Mayor and Council to recognize 

and permanently memorialize Mr. Wall’s legacy and service to Manasquan Beach.  

 

           NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the gazebo at Inlet Beach shall 

be permanently named the Wally Wall Inlet Gazebo in honor of Mr. Wall’s legacy and 

service.   

 

 

                                        CERTIFICATION 

 I, Barbara Ilaria, Municipal Clerk, Borough of Manasquan, County of 

Monmouth, State of New Jersey, do hereby certify that the foregoing resolution was 

duly adopted by the Borough Council at the August 14, 2023, meeting. 

 

        

________________________________ 

                                                                 BARBARA ILARIA, RMC, CMC  

                                                      Municipal Clerk 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

COUNCIL                                       

IN
T

R
O

D
U

C
E

D
 

S
E

C
O

N
D

E
D

 

A
Y

E
 

N
A

Y
 

A
B

S
T

A
IN

 

A
B

S
E

N
T

 

BRESNAHAN       

HOLLY       

LEE       

MANGAN       

OLIVERA       

TRIGGIANO       

       

ON CONSENT AGENDA   ____YES    ___NO 



 

 

  
 BOROUGH OF MANASQUAN 

RESOLUTION 

220-2023 

  

 

                

           WHEREAS the Borough of Manasquan owns the property located at 27 Osborn 

Avenue; and  

     

           WHEREAS, Complete Orthopedic and Sports Therapy, LLC d/b/a Coast 

Rehabilitation Physical Therapy (Coast Rehabilitation) was the tenant of the building 

located at 27 Osborn Avenue; and  

 

           WHEREAS, as part of the tenant’s lease agreement, the Borough maintained on 

deposit the tenant’s security deposit in the amount of $8,900; and  

 

           WHEREAS, this tenancy relationship was permanently terminated on June 30, 

2023; and  

 

           WHEREAS, subsequent to the tenant vacating, the premises had been found to 

be in satisfactory and broom clean condition.  

 

           NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, the governing body directs that the 

security deposit be returned in full to Coast Rehabilitation. 

 

 

 

                                                    CERTIFICATION 

 I, Barbara Ilaria, Municipal Clerk, Borough of Manasquan, County of 

Monmouth, State of New Jersey, do hereby certify that the foregoing resolution was 

duly adopted by the Borough Council at the August 14, 2023, meeting. 

 

        

________________________________ 

                                                                 BARBARA ILARIA, RMC, CMC  

                                                      Municipal Clerk 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

COUNCIL                                       

IN
T

R
O

D
U

C
E

D
 

S
E

C
O

N
D

E
D

 

A
Y

E
 

N
A

Y
 

A
B

S
T

A
IN

 

A
B

S
E

N
T

 

BRESNAHAN       

HOLLY       

LEE       

MANGAN       

OLIVERA       

TRIGGIANO       

       

ON CONSENT AGENDA   ____YES    ___NO 



BOROUGH OF MANASQUAN 

RESOLUTION  

221-2023 

 

 

 WHEREAS, the Borough of Manasquan is desirous of appointing Summer 

Recreation Camp Staff for the 2023 Season; and 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Borough Council of the 

Borough of Manasquan, Monmouth County, New Jersey, on this 14th day of August 2023 

appoint the following Summer Recreation Camp Employee to work during the 2023 

Season: 

 

Name Title 
Rate of Pay 

(Hourly/Salary/Seasonal) 

Effective 
Date 
From 

and To 

Hours 
(Part Time/ 
Seasonal) 

Liam Pollock Camp 
Counselor 

$12/hour 7/26/23-
8/4/23 

Seasonal 

 

 

 

CERTIFICATION 

             I, Barbara Ilaria, Municipal Clerk of the Borough of Manasquan, Monmouth 

County, New Jersey, do hereby certify that the foregoing is a true copy of a Resolution 

duly adopted by the Borough Council at their regular meeting held on August 14, 2023 

 

 

___________________________________                                             

BARBARA ILARIA, RMC, CMC                    

Municipal Clerk 

 

 

 

 

  

                                                                     

 

 

IN
T

R
O

D
U

C
E

D
 

S
E

C
O

N
D

E
D

 

A
Y

E
 

N
A

Y
 

A
B

S
T

A
IN

 

A
B

S
E

N
T

 

BRESNAHAN       

HOLLY       

LEE       

MANGAN       

OLIVERA       

TRIGGIANO       

ON CONSENT AGENDA   ____YES    ___NO 



BOROUGH OF MANASQUAN 

RESOLUTION 

222-2023 

 

 

AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF A COMMODITY 

RESALE AGREEMENT WITH THE COUNTY OF MONMOUTH 

 

 

 WHEREAS, N.J.A.C. 5:34-7.15 authorizes local contracting units to enter into 

Commodity Resale Agreements for the purchase of certain commodities from other 

contracting units; and 

 WHEREAS, the County of Monmouth has authorized the renewal of the 

Monmouth County Commodity Resale System (SYSTEM IDENTIFIER 99174-

MCCRS); for the period of October 1, 2023, through September 30, 2028; and  

 WHEREAS, it would be in the best interest of this Municipality to remain a 

member of the Monmouth County Commodity Resale System for that period. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Governing Body of the 

Borough of Manasquan that the Mayor and Municipal Clerk be and are hereby 

authorized to execute the attached Commodity Resale Agreement with the County of 

Monmouth. 

 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Municipal Clerk forward a certified 

copy of this resolution, along with the executed Commodity Resale Agreement to 

Director of Shared Services, County of Monmouth, Hall of Records Annex, First Floor, 

1 East Main Street, Freehold, NJ  07728. 

      

CERTIFICATION 

 I, Barbara Ilaria, Municipal Clerk of the Borough of Manasquan, Monmouth 

County, New Jersey, do hereby certify that the foregoing is a true copy of a Resolution 

duly adopted by the Borough Council at their regular meeting held on August 14, 2023. 

 

                                                                                ___________________________ 

                                                                                BARBARA ILARIA, RMC,CMC 

                                                                                Municipal Clerk 

 

  

  

 

 

IN
T

R
O

D
U

C
E

D
 

S
E

C
O

N
D

E
D

 

A
Y

E
 

N
A

Y
 

A
B

S
T

A
IN

 

A
B

S
E

N
T

 

BRESNAHAN       

HOLLY       

LEE       

MANGAN       

OLIVERA       

TRIGGIANO       

ON CONSENT AGENDA   ____YES    ___NO 



 

BOROUGH OF MANASQUAN 

RESOLUTION 

223-2023 

 

 

CHANGE ORDER NO. 2 & FINAL 

 

 

           Be it resolved by the Mayor and Council of the Borough of Manasquan of 

Monmouth County, New Jersey upon recommendation of the Borough Engineer that 

the Change Order for the Contract listed below be and is hereby approved. 

 

TITLE OF JOB: Curtis Park Improvements  

                                     

 

ENGINEER:  Collier Engineering & Design 

                                    331 Newman Springs Road 

                                    Red Bank, NJ 07701   

    

CONTRACTOR:        Precise Construction, Inc. 

1016 Highway 33 

                                    Freehold, NJ 07728 

     

 

CHANGE ORDER NO. 2 & FINAL 

 

 

AMOUNT OF CHANGE FOR THIS RESOLUTION:         $(33,138.00)  

 

TOTAL ORIGINAL CONTRACT PRICE   $354,985.00 

 

REVISED CONTRACT PRICE                                $344,597.00 

 

 

 

CERTIFICATION 

 

 I, Barbara Ilaria, Municipal Clerk of the Borough of Manasquan, Monmouth 

County, New Jersey, do hereby certify that the foregoing is a true copy of a Resolution 

duly adopted by the Borough Council at their regular meeting held on August 14, 2023. 

 

 

      ____________________________ 

      BARBARA ILARIA, RMC, CMC 

      Municipal Clerk 

  

  
 

IN
T

R
O

D
U

C
E

D
 

S
E

C
O

N
D

E
D

 

A
Y

E
 

N
A

Y
 

A
B

S
T

A
IN

 

A
B

S
E

N
T

 

HOLLY       

LEE       

MANGAN       

OLIVERA       

READ       

TRIGGIANO       

ON CONSENT AGENDA   __X__YES    ___NO 



 

CERTIFICATION 

 

 Pursuant to a resolution of the Division of Local Government Services, Local 

Finance Board, dated October 20, 1975, I hereby state that there is annexed hereto a 

proper certificate of availability of funds executed by the Chief Financial Officer. 

 

       _________________________ 

       MARK G. KITRICK 

 

Mark G. Kitrick, Esq. 

Municipal Attorney 

2329 Route 34 South 

Suite 104 

Manasquan, NJ  08736 

 

 

 

CERTIFICATION 

 I am the financial officer charged with the responsibility of maintaining financial 

records of the Borough of Manasquan, State of New Jersey, and on this 14th day of 

August 2023, I hereby certify to the Borough Council of the Borough of Manasquan as 

follows: 

 

 1. Adequate funds are available in an amount sufficient to defray the 

expenditure of money by the Borough under the proposed contract, which is pending 

approval by the governing body: 

 

 2. The funds certified herein as being available for the aforementioned 

contract have not been certified by the undersigned as being available for any other 

contract now pending or in force. 

 

Account: _________________________ 

           

          ________________________ 

                     Amy Spera 

                     Chief Municipal Financial Officer 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  



BOROUGH OF MANASQUAN 

RESOLUTION 

224-2023 

 

 
BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the Borough of Manasquan, County of 

Monmouth, State of New Jersey that: 

 

WHEREAS, a refund of monies are due to the following: 

                                                                             

         NAME:     STREVENS BUILDING CORPORATION 

                           302 WASHINGTON AVENUE 

                           SPRING LAKE, NJ 07762 

                            

                                                           AMOUNT OF REFUND DUE:    $1,000.00 

 

                            REASON FOR REFUND:  Dumpster Security-324 Perrine Blvd 

 

 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Chief Financial Officer is 

hereby authorized and directed to draw a warrant in the said amount to the above listed 

refunds with said warrant to be charged against the General Ledger. 

 

         CERTIFICATION 

  I, Barbara Ilaria, Municipal Clerk, Borough of Manasquan, County of 

Monmouth, State of New Jersey, do hereby certify that the foregoing resolution was 

duly adopted by the Borough Council at the August 14, 2023, meeting. 

 

     

        ________________________________ 

       BARBARA ILARIA, RMC, CMC 

      Municipal Clerk 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 
COUNCIL                                       

IN
T

R
O

D
U

C
E

D
 

S
E

C
O

N
D

E
D

 

A
Y

E
 

N
A

Y
 

A
B

S
T

A
IN

 

A
B

S
E

N
T

 

BRESNAHAN       

HOLLY       

LEE       

MANGAN       

OLIVERA       

TRIGGIANO       

       

ON CONSENT AGENDA   ____YES    ___NO 



BOROUGH OF MANASQUAN 

 RESOLUTION  

225-2023 

 

RESOLUTION AWARDING A CONTRACT FOR FIRST 

AVENUE IMPROVEMENTS PHASE II IN THE 

BOROUGH OF MANASQUAN, COUNTY OF 

MONMOUTH STATE OF NEW JERSEY 

 

 WHEREAS, public bids were advertised for and received pursuant to the Local 

Public Contracts Law (N.J.S.A. 40A: 11-1 et seq.) for First Avenue Improvements 

Phase II; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the bids submitted for this project were: 

 

WHEREAS, three (3) bids were received for this project: 

WHEREAS, Black Rock Enterprises submitted a base bid in the amount of 

$1,369,000.00 with Alternate A Bid in the amount of $15,000.00 for a Total Bid of  

$1,384,000.00; and 

 

            WHEREAS, the Borough Engineer has determined the bid by Black Rock 

Enterprises complies with the bid specifications and includes all required 

documentation and has recommended the award of the bid; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the Borough Council has determined, for the reasons set forth 

below, that the bid of Black Rock Enterprises is a responsive and responsible bid; and   

 

 WHEREAS, the Borough Council is desirous of awarding a contract to Black 

Rock Enterprises for the Total Base Bid and Alternate A Bid for the total amount of 

$1,384,000.00 for the project. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED on the 14th day of August 2023, 

by the Mayor and Council of the Borough of Manasquan, in the County of Monmouth 

and State of New Jersey, as follows: 

 

1. This Bid award is subject to the review and approval of the Bid 

documents by the Manasquan Borough Attorney. 

 

2. Subject to the above condition, a contract in the total amount of 

$1,384,000.00 is awarded to Black Rock Enterprises for this project. 

 

3. The Mayor and Municipal Clerk are authorized and directed to execute 

all necessary documents to effectuate a contract with Black Rock 

Enterprises. 

 

4. A certified copy of this resolution shall be sent to: 

 

Black Rock Enterprises 

1316 Englishtown Road 

Old Bridge, NJ 08857 

 

 

BIDDER BASE BID ALTERNATE A 

BID 

TOTAL BASE + 

ALTERNATE A  

Black Rock Enterprises $1,369,000.00 $15,000.00 $1,384,000.00 

Seacoast Construction $1,869,414.80 $12,500.00 $1,881,914.80 

Earle Asphalt Company $1,992,113.13 $15,500.00 $2,007,613.13 

    



CERTIFICATION 

 I, Barbara Ilaria, Municipal Clerk of the Borough of Manasquan, Monmouth 

County, New Jersey, do hereby certify that the foregoing is a true copy of a Resolution 

duly adopted by the Borough Council at their regular meeting held on August  14, 2023. 

 

                                                                               ____________________________ 

                                                                                BARBARA ILARIA, RMC, CMC 

                                                                                 Municipal Clerk 

 

 

CERTIFICATION 

 Pursuant to a resolution of the Division of Local Government Services, Local 

Finance Board, dated October 1, 1975, I hereby state that there is annexed hereto a 

proper certificate of availability of funds executed by the Chief Financial Officer. 

 

       _________________________ 

       MARK G. KITRICK, ESQ. 

       Borough Attorney 

 

Mark G. Kitrick, Esq. 

2329 Route 34 

Suite 104 

Manasquan, NJ 08736 

 

CERTIFICATION 

 I am the financial officer charged with the responsibility of maintaining 

financial records of the Borough of Manasquan, State of New Jersey, and on this 14th 

day of August  2023, I hereby certify to the Borough Council of the Borough of 

Manasquan as follows: 

 

1. Adequate funds are available in an amount sufficient to defray the 

expenditure of money by the Borough under the following proposed 

contract, which is pending approval by the governing body. 

 

 

  

2. The funds certified herein as being available for the aforementioned 

contract have not been certified by the undersigned as being available 

for any other contract now pending or in force. 

 

 

ACCOUNT:   

_________________________________ 

       __________________________ 

       AMY SPERA  

       Chief Financial Officer 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

COUNCIL                                       

IN
T

R
O

D
U

C
E

D
 

S
E

C
O

N
D

E
D

 

A
Y

E
 

N
A

Y
 

A
B

S
T

A
IN

 

A
B

S
E

N
T

 

BRESNAHAN       

HOLLY       

LEE       

MANGAN       

OLIVERA       

TRIGGIANO       

ON CONSENT AGENDA   ____YES    ___NO 



BOROUGH OF MANASQUAN 

RESOLUTION 

226-2023 

 

 

   

            WHEREAS, on March 22, 2023, the Borough received a grant award in the amount 

of $90,000.00 from the Monmouth County Municipal Open Space Grant Program for the 

Curtis Park Improvement Project Phase III; and  

            WHEREAS, the Borough has completed nearly all of the improvements that were 

contemplated by the Phase III grant; and 

WHEREAS, after careful consideration, the Mayor and Council have decided to 

decline the 2022 Monmouth County Municipal Open Space Grant for the Curtis Park 

Improvement Project Phase III 

          NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, the borough is desirous of declining the 

2022 Grant Award from the Monmouth County Municipal Open Space Grant in the amount 

of $90,000.00. 

 

  I, Barbara Ilaria, Municipal Clerk, Borough of Manasquan, County of Monmouth, 

State of New Jersey, do hereby certify that the foregoing resolution was duly adopted by 

the Borough Council at the August 14, 2023, meeting. 

 

 

 

     _________________________________ 

     BARBARA ILARIA, RMC, CMC 

     Municipal Clerk 
 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

IN
T

R
O

D
U

C
E

D
 

S
E

C
O

N
D

E
D

 

A
Y

E
 

N
A

Y
 

A
B

S
T

A
IN

 

A
B

S
E

N
T

 

BRESNAHAN       

HOLLY       

LEE       

MANGAN       

OLIVERA       

TRIGGIANO       

       

ON CONSENT AGENDA   ____YES    ___NO 



 

 

 
BOROUGH OF MANASQUAN 

 RESOLUTION 

 227-2023 

 
 BE IT RESOLVED by the Borough Council of the Borough of Manasquan, County 

of Monmouth, State of New Jersey, that the Borough of Manasquan retains the Professional 

Engineering Services of Colliers Engineering & Design, 101 Crawfords Corner Road, Suite 

3400, Holmdel, NJ 07733, for purposes of providing Professional Services for providing 

Construction Administration and Construction Services for the First Avenue Improvements 

Phase II Project.  The fees are as follows: 

 

        Phase 1.0   Construction Administration/Inspection Services      $121,500.00 

 

        Phase 2.0    Bituminous Concrete Core Sampling and Testing     $    2,500.00  

 

   Reimbursables            $      500.00  

    

for a total amount not to exceed $124,500.00 for the service outlined in the proposal dated 

August 8, 2023. 

 

 AND BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED by the Borough Council of the Borough of 

Manasquan, County of Monmouth, State of New Jersey, that the Mayor is authorized to sign 

the Authorization Form dated August 8, 2023 

 

 I, Barbara Ilaria, Municipal Clerk, Borough of Manasquan, County of Monmouth, 

State of New Jersey, do hereby certify that the foregoing Resolution was duly adopted by the 

Borough Council at the August 14, 2023, meeting. 

 

_________________________________ 

      Barbara Ilaria RMC, CMC  

      Municipal Clerk 

 

 

CERTIFICATION 

 

 I am the chief municipal financial officer charged with the responsibility of 

maintaining financial records of the Borough of Manasquan, State of New Jersey, and on this 

14th day of August 2023 I hereby certify to the Borough Council of the Borough of Manasquan 

as follows: 

 

Adequate funds are available in an amount sufficient to defray the expenditure  

of money by the Borough under the following proposed contract, which is 

pending approval by the governing body: 

 

Colliers Engineering & Design – Construction Administration/Inspection  

Services   
                                                                                

 

            Account: _____________________________ 

 

                                                                                       ______________________________ 

                                                                                       Amy Spera 

                    Chief Financial Officer                                                                           

                                                                                  

                    

 

 

 

 

                                 

                      

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

COUNCIL                                       

IN
T

R
O

D
U

C
E

D
 

S
E

C
O

N
D

E
D

 

A
Y

E
 

N
A

Y
 

A
B

S
T

A
IN

 

A
B

S
E

N
T

 

BRESNAHAN       

HOLLY       

LEE       

MANGAN       

OLIVERA       

TRIGGIANO       

       

ON CONSENT AGENDA   ____YES    ___NO 



 

 

 

 

 

BOROUGH OF MANASQUAN 

RESOLUTION  

228-2023 

 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR AND 

CLERK TO EXECUTE A PROJECT AGREEMENT WITH 

MONMOUTH COUNTY FOR PERFORMANCE AND 

DELIVERY OF FY 2023 COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 

PROJECTS 

 

 

WHEREAS, certain federal funds are potentially available to Monmouth 

County through the Housing and Community Development Act of 1974, as amended; 

and  

WHEREAS, the County of Monmouth expects to receive an allocation for  

FY2023 from the United States Department of Housing and Urban Development; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the County of Monmouth has submitted its annual Plan for  

FY2023 to the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development, which included a 

project hereinafter referred to as Euclid Avenue Area Improvements Phase II with grant 

allocation of $172,462.00; and  

 

 WHEREAS, the Borough of Manasquan hereby met all the requirements for 

the release of funds to begin incurring costs for this project: and 

 

WHEREAS, the Borough of Manasquan has filed with the Monmouth County 

Community Development Program as acceptable timetable for completion and 

expenditure of grants funds, which is included as an appendix to the Project Agreement.  

 

 

 NOW THERFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Mayor and Municipal Clerk 

of the Borough of Manasquan are authorized to execute with the County of Monmouth 

the Euclid Avenue Area Improvements Project Phase II Agreement on behalf of the 

Borough of Manasquan. 

 

CERTIFICATION 

 I, Barbara Ilaria, Municipal Clerk, Borough of Manasquan, County of 

Monmouth, New Jersey, do hereby certify that the foregoing Resolution was duly 

adopted by the Borough Council at the August 14, 2023, meeting. 

 

 

____________________________ 

BARBARA ILARIA, RMC, CMC 

               Municipal Clerk 

      

  

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

IN
T

R
O

D
U

C
E

D
 

S
E

C
O

N
D

E
D

 

A
Y

E
 

N
A

Y
 

A
B

S
T

A
IN

 

A
B

S
E

N
T

 

BRESNAHAN       

HOLLY       

LEE       

MANGAN       

OLIVERA       

TRIGGIANO       

ON CONSENT AGENDA   ____YES    ___NO 



BOROUGH OF MANASQUAN 

RESOLUTION  

229-2023 

 

RESOLUTION OF THE BOROUGH COUNCIL OF THE 

BOROUGH OF MANASQUAN, MONMOUTH COUNTY, 

NEW JERSEY, ADOPTING USE OF FORCE POLICY 

 

WHEREAS, the Borough of Manasquan is the recipient of a Community 

Development Block Grant for Euclid Avenue Improvements Phase II; and 

WHEREAS, as part of the Community Development Block Grant the Borough is 

required to adopted a Use of Force Policy; and 

WHEREAS, the Manasquan Police Department follows the Office of the Attorney 

General’s Use of Force Policy dated April 2022. 

          NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, on this 14th day of August 2023, by 

the Borough Council of the Borough of Manasquan, in the County of Monmouth and State 

of New Jersey that the Use of Force Policy be adopted by the Governing Body. 

  

 

CERTIFICATION 

I, Barbara Ilaria, Municipal Clerk of the Borough of Manasquan, Monmouth County, New 

Jersey, do hereby certify that the foregoing is a true copy of a Resolution duly adopted by 

the Borough Council at their regular meeting held August 14, 2023. 

 

      ____________________________ 

                                                                        BARBARA ILARIA, RMC, CMC 

                                                                        Municipal Clerk    

 

 

  

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

IN
T

R
O

D
U

C
E

D
 

S
E

C
O

N
D

E
D

 

A
Y

E
 

N
A

Y
 

A
B

S
T

A
IN

 

A
B

S
E

N
T

 

BRESNAHAN       

HOLLY       

LEE       

MANGAN       

OLIVERA       

TRIGGIANO       

       

ON CONSENT AGENDA   ____YES    ___NO 



 

BOROUGH OF MANASQUAN 

RESOLUTION  

230-2023  
 
   

WHEREAS, pursuant to N.J.S.A. 54:4-3.30a Disable Veterans may be exempt from 

taxation; and 

 WHEREAS, the Tax Collector shall be and is hereby discharged from collecting 

2023 taxes from the following, as he/she is a Disabled Veteran as per NJ Statute 54:4-3.30a 

and exempt from all taxes as of the effective date noted for an assessment listed,  

WHEREAS, 2023 property taxes based on the assessment listed in the 2023 Tax 

Duplicate are to be cancelled and any monies showing a credit should be immediately 

refunded to the appropriate property owner stated.   

WHEREAS, the Borough Tax Assessor and Tax Collector have reviewed the 

circumstances surrounding this exemption and refund and have recommended to the 

Borough Council that the appropriate Borough officials be authorized to issue said 

exemption and refund, 

  
NAME:   JOHN MIHOK   EFFECTIVE 5/23/2023 

      27 ATLANTIC AVENUE 
      MANASQUAN, NJ 08736 
      BLOCK 37 / LOT 6.02  
       Prorated refund: $409.05 
 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the Borough of 

Manasquan that the appropriate Borough officials be and are hereby authorized to issue the 

cancellation in accordance with N.J.S.A. 54:4-3.30a. 

 
CERTIFICATION 

 
I, Barbara Ilaria, Clerk of the Borough of Manasquan, County of Monmouth, State 

of New Jersey, do hereby certify that the foregoing resolution was duly adopted by the 

Borough Council at the August 14, 2023 meeting. 

 

 
___________________________________ 
BARBARA ILARIA, RMC, CMC 

 Municipal Clerk 
 

  

IN
T

R
O

D
U

C
E

D
 

S
E

C
O

N
D

E
D

 

A
Y

E
 

N
A

Y
 

A
B

S
T

A
IN

 

A
B

S
E

N
T

 

BRESNAHAN       

HOLLY       

LEE       

MANGAN       

OLIVERA       

TRIGGIANO       

       

ON CONSENT AGENDA   ____YES    ___NO 



 

 

 

 

 

BOROUGH OF MANASQUAN 

RESOLUTION  

231-2023 

 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO SIGN A 

CERTIFICATION PROHIBITING THE USE OF 

EXCESSIVE FORCE AND A CERTIFICATION 

PROHIBITING THE USE OF FEDERAL FUNDS FOR 

LOBBYING  

 

WHEREAS, a certain federal funds are potentially available to Monmouth 

County through the Housing and Community Development Act of 1974, as amended; 

and  

WHEREAS, the United States Department of Housing and Urban Development 

has allocated funding to the County of Monmouth for Fiscal Year  2023; and 

 

WHEREAS, the County is making some of these funds available to certain 

participating municipalities and non-profit agencies; and  

 

WHEREAS, it is required that the Borough of Manasquan execute a Project 

Agreement with Monmouth County to undertake a project known as Euclid Avenue 

Area Improvements Phase II; and  

 

WHEREAS, the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development is 

requiring that the Mayor of the Borough of Manasquan sign additional certifications in 

order to receive these funds; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Borough of Manasquan has adopted a policy prohibiting the 

use of excessive force by its law enforcement agency (police force) within its  

jurisdiction against any individuals engaged in non-violent civil rights demonstrations; 

and 

 

WHEREAS, a copy of that policy is attached to and made part of this resolution; 

and 

 

 NOW THERFORE BE IT RESOLVED,  that the Borough of Manasquan has 

met the conditions of receiving a Fiscal Year 2023 allocation by adopting a policy 

prohibiting the use of excessive force and by not using federal funds lobbying or by 

disclosing that funds have been used for lobbying.  

 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Mayor of the Borough of Manasquan 

is hereby authorized to sign the attached certifications which will become part of the FY 

2023 Project Agreement.  

 

 

CERTIFICATION 

 I, Barbara Ilaria, Municipal Clerk, Borough of Manasquan, County of 

Monmouth, New Jersey, do hereby certify that the foregoing Resolution was duly 

adopted by the Borough Council at the August 14, 2023 meeting. 

 

____________________________ 

BARBARA ILARIA, RMC, CMC 

               Municipal Clerk   

   

  

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

IN
T

R
O

D
U

C
E

D
 

S
E

C
O

N
D

E
D

 

A
Y

E
 

N
A

Y
 

A
B

S
T

A
IN

 

A
B

S
E

N
T

 

BRESNAHAN       

HOLLY       

LEE       

MANGAN       

OLIVERA       

TRIGGIANO       

ON CONSENT AGENDA   ____YES    ___NO 



































































































 

BOROUGH OF MANASQUAN 

RESOLUTION  

232-2023  
 
   

WHEREAS, the Monmouth County Board of Commissioners (County 

Commissioners) approved the plan to pave Broad Street in Manasquan (County Route 20); 

and  

WHEREAS, during the planning phase of the paving project it was determined that 

a related drainage issue was causing significant ponding from stormwater runoff on 

properties directly east of Broad Street on Woodland Avenue; and  

WHEREAS, the County Commissioners agreed to increase the paving project scope 

to include the correction of this stormwater ponding issue; and 

WHEREAS, the project was completed in July of 2023 and has resulted not only in 

new pavement, curbs and sidewalks in the area of Manasquan Elementary School south to 

Woodland Avenue but also in the correction of the stormwater ponding issue.   

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Mayor and Council hereby 

express their appreciation and gratitude to the Monmouth County Board of Commissioners 

and the Monmouth County Department of Engineering for their commitment to maintaining 

Monmouth County roadways and for their expert assistance in correcting this Broad Street-

related drainage issue.   

 
CERTIFICATION 

 
I, Barbara Ilaria, Clerk of the Borough of Manasquan, County of Monmouth, State 

of New Jersey, do hereby certify that the foregoing resolution was duly adopted by the 

Borough Council at the August 14, 2023 meeting. 

 

 
___________________________________ 
BARBARA ILARIA, RMC, CMC 

 Municipal Clerk 
 
 

 

IN
T

R
O

D
U

C
E

D
 

S
E

C
O

N
D

E
D

 

A
Y

E
 

N
A

Y
 

A
B

S
T

A
IN

 

A
B

S
E

N
T

 

BRESNAHAN       

HOLLY       

LEE       

MANGAN       

OLIVERA       

TRIGGIANO       

       

ON CONSENT AGENDA   ____YES    ___NO 



BOROUGH OF MANASQUAN 

RESOLUTION 

233-2023 

 

         BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOROUGH COUNCIL OF THE BOROUGH OF 

MANASQUAN, IN THE County of Monmouth, New Jersey (not less than three (3) 

members thereof affirmatively concurring) as follows: 

 

1. All bills or claims as reviewed and approved by the Administration & Finance 

Committee and as set forth in this Resolution are hereby approved for payment. 

         

2. The Mayor, Municipal Clerk and Chief Financial Officer are hereby authorized 

       and directed to sign checks in payment of bills and claims which are hereby 

      approved. 

 

The computer print-out of the list of checks will be on file in the Clerk’s Office. 

 

 

Current Fund  $3,611,721.34 

Water/Sewer Fund  $382,599.90 

Beach Fund $86,026.38 

Grants $1,196.96 

Recreation Trust $21,902.78 

Misc Trust $52,010.49 

General Capital $47,378.75 

E. Virginia Pump Station $170,135.52 

Beach Capital $160.00 

 

 
                  

CERTIFICATION 

 

I, Barbara Ilaria, Municipal Clerk, Borough of Manasquan, County of Monmouth, New 

Jersey do hereby certify that the foregoing resolution was duly adopted by the Council 

at their regular meeting on August 14, 2023. 

                           

 

                                                                         ____________________________ 

                                                                         BARBARA ILARIA, RMC, CMC  

                  Municipal Clerk 

 

 

 

 

                                             
  

 

 
 

 

 
COUNCIL                              

IN
T

R
O

D
U

C
E

D
 

S
E

C
O

N
D

E
D

 

A
Y

E
 

N
A

Y
 

A
B

S
T

A
IN

 

A
B

S
E

N
T

 

BRESNAHAN       

HOLLY       

LEE       

MANGAN       

OLIVERA       

TRIGGIANO       

ON CONSENT AGENDA   ____YES    ___NO 



BOROUGH OF MANASQUAN 

ORDINANCE NO. 2408-23 

 

 

 

ORDINANCE TO AMEND CHAPTER 7 (TRAFFIC) 

SECTION 7-31.1b (REGULATIONS FOR THE MOVEMENT 

AND THE PARKING OF TRAFFIC ON MUNICIPAL 

PROPERTY AND BOARD OF EDUCATION PROPERTY) 

AND AMENDING SECTION 7-25.3 (HANDICAPPED 

PARKING IN MUNICIPAL PARKING LOTS AND BOARD 

OF EDUCATION PROPERTY) IN THE BOROUGH OF 

MANASQUAN, COUNTY OF MONMOUTH, STATE OF 

NEW JERSEY. 

 

 WHEREAS, pursuant to the Revised General Ordinance of the Borough of 

Manasquan Code Chapter 7 refers to Traffic within the Borough of Manasquan; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the Manasquan Borough Council of the Borough of Manasquan is 

desirous of amending Section 7-31.1b and 7-25.3, to regulate municipal parking at the 

North Main Street Municipal Lot. 

 

 NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED AS FOLLOWS: 

 

Section 1:  Section 7-31.1b Regulations for the Movement and the Parking of Traffic on 

Municipal Property and Board of Education Property of the Borough of 

Manasquan Code is hereby amended as follows:  

 

b.  NORTH MAIN STREET MUNICIPAL LOT, Block 33 Lot 1.01. 

 

     REGULATIONS:  

 

1. General Parking 

 

A. All vehicles must park in designated areas and between lines provided. 

 

B. No commercial or noncommercial motor drawn vehicle, such as a boat 

trailer, recreational trailer, utility trailer or similar vehicle may be parked on 

this lot between the hours of 6:00 p.m. and 6:00 a.am, except for vehicles 

making deliveries to or performing services for residents or occupants of 

structures on the street. 

 

C. No commercial or noncommercial motor drawn vehicle, such as a boat 

trailer, recreational trailer, utility trailer or similar vehicle may be parked at 

any time on this lot when the same is detached from a motor vehicle.  

 

D. No person shall park a vehicle on the parking lot for longer than the time 

limit described below: 

 

Location Number of 

Parking Spaces 

Limit Hours Hours/Days 

On the north side of 

the parking lot 

from a point 

beginning 18 feet 

east of the easterly 

curb line of North 

Main Street to a 

point 90 feet east 

therefore and 60 

feet south of the 

southerly curb line 

of the parking lot 

8 1 hour parking 9:00 a.m. to 5:00 

p.m. Daily 

 

 



E. Parking exclusively for Manasquan Senior Citizen Group members shall be 

designated as follows: 

 

2. Permit Parking. No person shall park a vehicle in the parking lot during times 

indicated unless the vehicle shall have a valid permit displayed. 

 

Location Hours 

Entire Lot 2:00 a.m. to 6:00 a.m. 

 

3. Handicapped Parking. All stalls shall be eight (8) feet wide and shall have an 

appropriately- sized adjacent aisle as required by the Americans with 

Disabilities Act.  All stalls shall be signed with the R7-8 and R7-8P (Reserved 

Parking Sign and Penalty Plate), in the designated parking areas for persons 

who have been issued the Handicapped Parking permit by the Motor Vehicle 

Commission. 

 

4. Tow-Away Zones. Any vehicle parked or standing as to obstruct or impede a 

normal flow of traffic block entrances or exit ways, loading zones, oil fills, any 

grassy area pedestrian walkway, or present in any way a safety or traffic hazard 

may be removed by towing the vehicle at the owner’s or operator’s expense. 

 

Location Limit Number of 

Parking Spaces 

Hours/Days 

Immediately adjacent 

to the south side of the 

Manasquan 

Community Senior 

Center (MCSC) 

building beginning at a 

point 62 feet west of 

the southeastern edge 

of the building and 

running to a point 98 

feet west of the 

southeastern edge of 

the MCSC building 

Manasquan 

Community Senior 

Center Parking Only 

4 9:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. 

Monday through Friday 

On the east side of the 

parking lot from a 

point 56 feet west of 

the western curb line of 

Osborn Avenue to a 

point 129 feet from the 

southerly wall of the 

Senior Center 

Manasquan 

Community Senior 

Center Parking Only 

9 9:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. 

Monday through Friday 

On the east side of the 

parking lot from a 

point 80 feet west of 

the western curb line of 

Osborn Avenue to a 

point 48 feet from the 

southerly wall of the 

Manasquan 

Community Senior 

Center 

Manasquan 

Community Senior 

Center Parking Only 

1 9:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. 

Monday through Friday 

On the east side of the 

parking lot from a 

point 80 feet west of 

the western curb line of 

Osborn Avenue to a 

point 57 feet from the 

southerly wall of the 

Manasquan 

Community Senior 

Center (MCSC) 

building 

Manasquan 

Community Senior 

Center Parking Only 

1 9:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. 

Monday through Friday 



Section 2: Section 7-25.3 Handicapped Parking in Municipal Parking Lots and Board 

of Education Property of Education Property of the Borough of Manasquan 

Code is hereby amended as follows: 

 

Name of Street Spaces Location 
Borough Hall 3 As indicated on Site Plan 

Fourth Avenue 

Municipal Parking Lot 

2 From a point 26 feet south of East 

Main Street to a point 24 feet 

south therefrom 

Manasquan Elementary 

School 

4 On both sides of lot beginning at a 

point 118 feet west of Curtis Place 

for 25 feet west therefrom 

Manasquan High School 2 On west side of the building 

beginning 38 feet south of the 

west door for 24 feet west 

therefrom 

 2 On the south side of the building 

at the east end of the lot 

Ocean Avenue Ramp 3 Between the north and south 

ramps 

North Main Street 

Municipal Parking Lot 

1 On the northwest side of the 

parking 

lot immediately adjacent to the 

western curbline from a point 9 

feet 

east of the easterly curb line of 

North 

Main Street to a point 27 feet east 

therefrom 

 5 Immediately adjacent to the 

curbline 

on the south side of the Senior 

Citizen 

Center building beginning at the 

southeastern edge of the building 

and 

running to a point 62 feet west of 

the 

southeastern edge of the building 

Pompano Avenue 

Municipal Parking Lot 

2 On the north side from a point 25 

feet west of Third Avenue to a 

point 24 feet west therefrom 

South Street (CR #20) 

Municipal Parking Lot 

2 On the east side from a point 20 

feet south of the southerly curb 

line of Main Street to a point 24 

feet south therefrom 

Stockton Beach Park 

Municipal Parking Lot 

2 On the east side from a point 15 

feet north of Stockton Avenue to a 

point 24 feet north therefrom 

Third Avenue Municipal 

Parking Lot 

2 On the east side from a point 11 

feet south of Riddle Way to a 

point 24 feet south therefrom 

 

 

Section 3:  Construction and effective date 

 

(a)  Should any section or provision of this ordinance be held invalid in any 

proceedings, the same shall not affect any other section or provisions of this 

ordinance, except insofar as the section or provisions so held invalid shall be 

inseparable from the remainder of any such section or provision. 

 

(b) Chapter 97, et seq., of the Borough of Manasquan Code and all ordinances and parts 

of ordinances inconsistent with this Ordinance herewith are hereby repealed. 

 



NOTICE 

 

PUBLIC NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that Ordinance No. 2408-23 was 

introduced at a meeting of the Mayor and Council of the Borough of Manasquan 

on the 24th day of July 2023, and was then read for the first time.  The said 

Ordinance will be further considered for final passage by the Mayor and Council at 

Borough Hall, 201 East Main Street, Manasquan, NJ 08736 at 7:00 p.m. on the 14th 

day of August 2023.  At such time and place, or at any such time or place to which 

said meeting may be adjourned, all interested persons will be given an opportunity 

to be heard concerning said ordinance.  A copy of this ordinance can be obtained 

without cost by any member of the general public at the office of the Municipal 

Clerk in Borough Hall between the hours of 9:00 a.m. and 4:00 p.m. on Monday 

through Friday, except on legal holidays. 

 

      ______________________________ 

      Barbara Ilaria, RMC, CMC 

      Municipal Clerk 

 

 

Mark G. Kitrick, Esquire 

Municipal Attorney 

2329 Highway 34, Suite 104 

Manasquan, NJ 08736  

 

 

 

Passed on First Reading and Introduction: July 24, 2023 

Approved on Second Reading and Final Hearing: August 14, 2023 

 

 

 

 _________________________________________ 

 Edward Donovan 

 Mayor 


	Top
	1.	Regular Meeting Minutes - July 10, 2023
	2.	Regular Meeting Minutes - July 24, 2023
	1.	Engineer's Monthly Report
	8.14.23 Engineers report

	1.	215-2023 Refund Planning Board Escrow - Various
	215-2023  Return Planning Board Escrow -Various

	2.	216-2023 Appointing Additional Beach Staff
	216-2023 Appt. Beach Staff 2023

	3.	217-2023 Formally Designating 27 Osborn Avenue as Manasquan Community Senior Center
	217-2023  Naming Community Center

	4.	218-2023 Authorizing Return of Street Opening Security - 321 Cedar Avenue
	218-23 Return 2nd Street Opening Bond- 321 Cedar Ave

	5.	219-2023 Honoring Walter (Wally) Wall by Naming the Inlet Gazebo "Wally Inlet Gazebo"
	219-2023  Naming Inlet Gazebo- Wall

	6.	220-2023 Return of Security Deposit - Coast Rehabilitation Physical Therapy
	220-2023 Return of Deposit 27 Osborn

	7.	221-2023 Appoint Summer Recreation Camp Staff - Pollock
	221-2023 Appt. Summer Recreation Employee 2023

	8.	222-2023 Authorizing Execution of Commodity Resale Agreement - County of Monmouth
	222-2023  Authorizing Mayor to Sign Commodity Resale Agreement

	9.	223-2023 Change Order & Final - Curtis Park Improvements
	223-2023 Change Order #2 - Curtis Park Improvments

	10.	224-2023 Return Dumpster Security - 324 Perrine Blvd.
	224-2023 Return Dumpster Security- 324 Perrine Blvd

	11.	225-2023 Awarding First Avenue Improvements Phase II Contract - Black Rock Enterprises
	225-2023 Awarding First Ave. PH II - Black Rock

	12.	226-2023 Declining MC Municipal Open Space Grant for Curtis Park Improvement Project Phase III
	226-2023 Declining 2022 Open Space Municpal Grant - Curtis Park Phase 3

	13.	227-2023 Authorizing Scope of Work First Avenue Improvements Phase II Project - Colliers Engineering
	227-2023  Auth Scope of Work Colliers Construction-Administration and Inspection - 1st ave Phase II

	14.	228-2023 Authorizing Execution of CDBG Agreement - Euclid Avenue Area Improvements Phase II
	228-2023 Auth. Mayor & Clerk to Execute CDBG Agreement

	15.	229-2023 Adopting Excessive Force Policy
	229-2023 Adopting Use of Force  Policy

	16.	230-2023 Authorizing Tax Exempt Status for Disabled Veteran - Mihok
	230-2023 Tax Exempt - Vet-Mihok (3) (1) (4)

	17.	231-2023 Authorizing Execution of Certification Prohibiting Use of Excessive Force and Use of Federal Funds for Lobbying
	231-2023 Auth. Mayor to sign CDBG Certifications Excessive Force
	231-2023

	18.	232-2023 Appreciation to Monmouth County for Broad Street Drainage Improvements
	232-2023 Appreciation to Monmouth County for Broad Street Drainage Fix

	19.	233-2023 Payment of Bills
	233-2023 Payment of Bills

	1.	2408-23 AMEND CHAPTER 7 (TRAFFIC) SECTION 7-31.1b (REGULATIONS FOR THE MOVEMENT AND THE PARKING OF TRAFFIC ON MUNICIPAL PROPERTY AND BOARD OF EDUCATION PROPERTY) AND AMENDING SECTION 7-25.3 (HANDICAPPED PARKING IN MUNICIPAL PARKING LOTS AND BOARD OF EDUCATION PROPERTY)
	2408-23 Amending Chapter 7 N. Main Parking Lot

	Bottom

